
 
 

 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 
Monthly Meeting 

The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the Nowak Room, Exeter Town Offices 
at 10 Front Street, Exeter on Tuesday, January 14th, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. 

 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present  
2. Public Comment 

 
Action Items  

• Wetland waiver request for proposed five lot subdivision and associated infrastructure at 100 
Linden Street (Tax Map –Lot: 104-71). Planning Board Case 19-13. (Henry Boyd, Mark West)  

• Climate Summit Workshop Takeaways (Trevor, Don, Kristen) 
• Annual Accomplishments and 2020 Goal Setting 
• Committee Reports 

a. Property Management 
i. Invasive Plant Removal 2019 Update 

ii. Fire Pits in Town Forest  
b. Trails  

i. Volunteer Support  
c. Outreach Events 

i. Report on Winter Solstice Celebration Raynes Farm 
ii. Upcoming:  

1. Open Barn Days day/time TBD,  
2. Full Moon Snowshoe Planning (Feb 8, 6:30 pm, ECC) 

d. Tree City Subcommittee 
• Approval of Minutes: December 10, 2019  
• Correspondence 
• Other Business   
• Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (2/11/20), Submission Deadline (1/31/20)  

 
 

 
Todd Piskovitz, Chair  
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Posted January 3rd, 2020 Exeter Town Office, Exeter Public Library, and Town Departments.  

http://www.exeternh.gov/


TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  January 10, 2019  
To:  Conservation Commission Board Members 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
Subject:  January 14th Conservation Commission Meeting  
 
1. 100 Linden St 

This application was before the TRC October 9th.  The Planning Board and Conservation Commission held a 
joint site walk on December 6th, and the application is scheduled to go before the Planning Board in late 
January.  Your packet includes the applicant’s response to TRC comments as well as their application material.  
 
Suggested Motion for Wetland Waiver: 

____     We reviewed this application and feel the need to table the application to a date certain due to 
insufficient information on criteria necessary for the Commission to make a recommendation to 
the planning board as noted below:    We recommend the required information be 
submitted by the next meeting submission deadline of ______ to be heard at the _______ 
conservation commission meeting date. 
 

____ We have reviewed this application and have no objection to the approval of the wetland waiver as 
proposed. 

 
____     We have reviewed this application and recommend that the wetland waiver request  

be (approved with conditions) (denied) as noted below: 
 

 
2. CAW Climate Summit 

For those who were unable to attend, you can find the agenda, presentations and resource list from the Dec 9th  
Coastal Climate Summit online.  Those from the Commission who were able to attend will take a little time 
talking about some thoughts/key take-aways from this session at Tuesday’s meeting.   
 
 
 

https://www.nhcaw.org/what/climate-summits/
https://www.nhcaw.org/what/climate-summits/






























             
 

 

Massachusetts:     62 Elm Street  Salisbury     MA 01952    Phone: 978-463-8980   Fax: 978-499-0029    www.mei-ma.com 
New Hampshire:  13 Hampton Road  Exeter  NH 03833                 603-778-0528           603-772-0689     www.mei-nh.com 
 

1 of 4 

MILLENNIUM  ENGINEERING, INC. 
Land Surveyors  and  Civil Engineers 

January 9, 2020 
 
Town of Exeter Planning Department 
c/o Dave Sharples, Planner 
10 Front Street 
Exeter, New Hampshire 03833 
 
Re: Subdivision Review TRC Comments  

PB Case #19-13 
100 Linden Street Tax Map Parcel #104-71 
 

Mr. Sharples: 
 
We have prepared the following information to address design review comments provided by the Natural Resource 
Planner at the TRC meeting on October 7th, 2019. 
 
Natural Resource Planner Comments  
 
Wetland waiver 9.9.3:   

1. Items 1 and 2:  Mark West’s report summarizes 7 of the 12 functions included in the highway method for 
wetland B and C.  Though I recognize some categories may not be addressed because their absence is 
obvious (fish/shellfish habitat, recreation, etc), the report also omits uniqueness/heritage and 
Threatened & Endangered (T&E) species/habitat.  Given uniqueness includes the role of the wetland in 
the ecological system of the region, it is important this feature be addressed in order to meet Item 1 in 
the waiver criteria, specifically the function of these wetlands in the greater hydrological landscape.  It 
is also important to understand whether these wetlands support habitat for any T&E species.  Lastly, the 
assessment of wildlife habitat does state vernal pools are not present, we would benefit from more 
details as to how this conclusion was made given the survey season (October 2018).  The report does a 
good job of proposing supplemental planting to offset the loss of vegetation within the buffer areas but 
the report would benefit from more detail correlating the choice of proposed plantings to their role in 
mitigating the functions lost.  It is noted seeding is not proposed for the buffer impact areas.  The report 
would benefit from details as to why this is not important for stabilization between plantings.  Finally, it 
is unclear how the plantings correlate to the restoration plans.  They differ in number of plants and there 
is no key to identify which species correlate to which symbol.  A full size plan would help in this regard 
and including utilities would also be helpful to ensure there are no conflicts between the proposed 
plantings and any utilities. 

 

Response: A.  Uniqueness/Heritage.  This value considers the effectiveness of the wetland or its associated 
waterbodies to provide certain special values. These may include archaeological sites, critical habitat for 
endangered species, its overall health and appearance, its role in the ecological system of the area, its relative 
importance as a typical wetland class for this geographic location. These functions are clearly valuable 
wetland attributes relative to aspects of public health, recreation, and habitat diversity. 

 



             
 

 

Massachusetts:     62 Elm Street  Salisbury     MA 01952    Phone: 978-463-8980   Fax: 978-499-0029    www.mei-ma.com 
New Hampshire:  13 Hampton Road  Exeter  NH 03833                 603-778-0528           603-772-0689     www.mei-nh.com 
 

2 of 4 

MILLENNIUM  ENGINEERING, INC. 
Land Surveyors  and  Civil Engineers 

Only 5 of the 31 qualifiers are present in this wetland so it does not provide Uniqueness/Heritage.  I have 
attached the Wetland Evaluation results.   

 
B. Threatened & Endangered (T&E) species/habitat and vernal pools.  The two wetlands on site are 
both forested wetlands that do not provide rare species habitat as they are typical forested wetlands.   The 
determination of vernal pools is based on the observation of potential seasonal flooding depths in both 
forested wetlands.  Wetland C appears to hold less than 12 inches of water during spring based on water 
staining of the surface leaves.  This determination is based on many years of experience evaluating vernal 
pools, but the only definitive determination requires a site inspection completed between March and June.  
The significant development project constructed to the west of this wetland which includes a very large 
detention basin further reduces the likely hood of a functioning vernal pool in Wetland C.  Wetland B is a 
seepage sloping wetland that does not seasonally flood therefore it is not a vernal pool.     

 
C.  Buffer Restoration Planting plans.  Millennium Engineering has prepared a separate Buffer Zone plan 
and all planting details have been added to this plan.  The trees and shrubs chosen include white pine to provide 
a visual habitat buffer, sweet pepper bush a shrub species with nectar flowers that spreads through rhizomes 
and arrowwood and blueberry which provide fruit for wildlife species.  A wildlife seed mix has also been 
added to the buffer restoration planting areas. 
 
2. Item 3:  Applicant should provide justification.  Current response does not address why the road needs 

to be here and cannot be moved outside of the buffer. It is important to include what requirements 
dictate why the location of the road is where you have designed it. 

 
Response: The road enters the site at a fixed location at the end of Patricia Avenue and has minimum turning 
radii restrictions to meet.  It then must turn back to reach the location of a cul-de-sac which must be located 
where it is shown in order for the lots to obtain their required 100’ of frontage. 

3. Item 4 and 5:  Only addresses buffer impacts of the road.  For the road I reiterate comments on Item 3 
above.  Regarding buffer impacts from the drainage structure, this should address why the design can 
not be modified (narrow up the width and lengthen the structure) so less of the structure impacts the 
buffer. See comments on Sheet 5 below. 

 
Response: The detention basin must be located in a lower elevation portion of the site to allow for flow from 
the roadway.  The basin has been modified to meet the town’s stormwater standards and has been moved a 
few feet back from the adjacent wetland. 

4. Item 6 – Given the need identified at the Oct 3 TRC to redesign the stormwater structure so that it 
complies with design standards, we did not recommend presenting to the Conservation Commission 
during the October meeting since buffer impacts change is likely.  The next Conservation Commission 
meeting is 11/12 with a submission deadline of 11/1.  I suggest in addition to missing info and 
documents that the applicant’s submission also include suggested site walk days/time. Given the early 
sunset time by the next meeting date, 8-ish am will likely gets the most attendees. 

 
Response: No response required. 



             
 

 

Massachusetts:     62 Elm Street  Salisbury     MA 01952    Phone: 978-463-8980   Fax: 978-499-0029    www.mei-ma.com 
New Hampshire:  13 Hampton Road  Exeter  NH 03833                 603-778-0528           603-772-0689     www.mei-nh.com 
 

3 of 4 

MILLENNIUM  ENGINEERING, INC. 
Land Surveyors  and  Civil Engineers 

5. Item 7 – See comments for waiver criteria Item 1 and 2 above.  Also given the physical overlap with the 
required restoration area for 98 Linden St and this project, there should be some discussion on how to 
coordinate these to achieve the greatest restoration benefit. 

 
Response: The applicant will coordinate with Kristen Murphy regarding any final adjustments needed to 
address the previous buffer restoration work. 

 
6. Note: Planning Board will require response to Site and Sub reg 13.7 Waivers. 
 
Response: A waiver request letter was included with the previous submittal to the Board. 

Plan Comments 
 
7. Sheet 2: Please add wetland scientist stamp, date of survey, and note including which manuals the 

delineations were done in accordance with.  Please add existing tree line.  Add significant trees (see 
Dave Sharples for revised criteria as these standards were recently amended).  Should include list of 
waivers required: add wetland waiver to this. 

 
Response: The final submittal of the plans will include the wetland scientist stamp and date of delineation on 
the Existing Conditions plan.  The existing treeline is shown on the plan.  Waivers have been added to the 
cover sheet (see sheet 1). 

8. Sheet 5: Appears you need a waiver for grading within 5 feet of property lines.  I have a concern about 
the amount of standing water in stormwater design.  The pool in the basin is 32’ deed with the main 
basin designed at 44’. With the water table in that location of 44’ based on test pit data that is a 
significant amount of standing water.  I understand from UEI’s TRC comments the submitted design 
would not meet design standards so I defer to their comments for criteria.  Additionally, I do note that 
the deep end pool in this design holding 5+ feet of water seems like it may also be a safety concern.  
Standing water, esp. given recent concerns about EEE will likely not be favored by homeowners.  I re-
emphasize DPWs comment during the TRC meeting that there should be some description of how the 95k 
site disturbance was calculated to ensure this includes all required areas given how close that number is 
to the AOT permit threshold. 

 
Response: The basin grading has been revised to stay outside the 5’ property line buffer.  The stormwater 
basin is designed per the NH Stormwater Manual.  The limit of disturbance has been added to the plan (see 
sheet 5). 

9. Sheet 6: I cannot find street lighting on utility plan.  Lighting must be dark sky compliant and cone of 
illumination should be mapped to show no overspill onto abutting property. 

 
Response: Per DPW, we have shown one street light near the cul-de-sac, which will be dark sky compliant 
and meet all Town requirements. 



             
 

 

Massachusetts:     62 Elm Street  Salisbury     MA 01952    Phone: 978-463-8980   Fax: 978-499-0029    www.mei-ma.com 
New Hampshire:  13 Hampton Road  Exeter  NH 03833                 603-778-0528           603-772-0689     www.mei-nh.com 
 

4 of 4 

MILLENNIUM  ENGINEERING, INC. 
Land Surveyors  and  Civil Engineers 

10. Sheet 7:  Seeding should include a native seed mix especially around wetland buffers.  This sheet should 
include the proposed restoration plantings (see comments on restoration under waiver criteria Item 1 
above).  Detention basin design states fertilizer applied if soil test indicates need—fertilizer is prohibited 
within the wetland conservation overlay district.  HOA docs should include fertilizer use is prohibited 
within wetland buffer areas in order to ensure all homeowners are informed.  Given proximity of 
development to wetland buffers, I believe wetland buffer disks are warranted around all buffers to deter 
encroachment. 

 
Response: See above response to comment #1, above.  Also, any reference to fertilizer has been removed 
from the plans. 

 
We trust the above response to comments provides the necessary information to advance the technical review 
portion of the Site Plan process. If you have any questions or comments on the above information please feel free 
to contact our office at 603-778-0528. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Millennium Engineering, Inc. 

 
 
 

Christopher M. York, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
  
      
 
 

             
                                                        
 
 
                                                                                                          





 
48 Stevens Hill Road, Nottingham, NH  03290 

603-734-4298 ♦ mark@westenv.net 
 
 
Kristen Murphy                                                                                                    October 3, 2019 
Natural Resource Planner 
Town of Exeter 
10 Front Street,  
Exeter, NH 03833 
 
RE:  Proposed Subdivision 100 Linden Street, Exeter, NH                   
SUBJ: Conditional Use Permit Application – Wetlands Assessment 
 
Dear Kristen: 
West Environmental, Inc. (WEI) submits this letter in support of the Conditional Use Permit 
Application for the above referenced project. It includes information on the wetland 
delineation, wetland functions, wetland buffer impacts and wetland mitigation.  WEI flagged the 
wetland boundary in October of 2018 at the request of the landowner.  The wetlands were 
delineated according to the following standards: 
 
• US Army Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual, Technical Report Y-87-1 (January 

1987). 
• Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Northcentral 

and Northeast Region (October 2009). 
• Field Indicators for Identifying Hydric Soils in New England Version 4 
• National List of Plant Species That Occur in Wetlands: Northeast (Region 1). U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service. 2013 
• Code of Administrative Rules. Wetlands Board, State of New Hampshire (Current). 
 
 
We evaluated soil probes and plant communities to determine the edge of wetland.  There are 
three wetlands on the property.  Wetland A is within the proposed Lot 5 in the western portion 
of the property where an existing house will remain.  This wetland has no impacts and is not 
associated with the Conditional Use Permit.  Wetland B is in the southwest corner of the site 
along the southern property boundary adjacent the proposed detention basin.  This wetland is 
and is the northern edge of a sloping red maple hemlock swamp with poorly drained soils which 
extends south off site.  Wetland C is in the northeast corner of the site and is a pit and mound 
forested wetlands with poorly drained soils.  There are large white pine, red oak, and white oak 
growing on small upland islands in this wetland.  
 
Photo documentation of the wetlands and the proposed development and buffer impact areas 
are attached.   

 

 



Proposed Subdivision 100 Linden Street, Exeter, NH                                         Page 2 

Wetland Function                                                                                                            

The wetlands were evaluated utilizing a wetland assessment methodology developed by the US 
Army Corps of Engineers New England Divisions Highway Methodology Workbook Supplement 
as a guide.  This evaluation is based on the physical characteristics of the wetland through field 
inspections.  This assessment evaluated the following wetland functions: 

Groundwater Recharge/Discharge – This function includes the ability of a wetland to provide 
recharge of surface water into the ground and/or discharge groundwater into surface waters. 

Wetland B has indicators of wetland discharge down slope of the site.  Wetland C has very 
shallow water in spring within the pits and therefore does not recharge significant water into 
the ground.  

Flood-flow Alteration – This function considers the effectiveness of the wetland in reducing flood 
damage by attenuation of floodwaters for prolonged periods following precipitation events. 

Wetland B is sloping and does not hold water for flood storage.  Wetland C hold small pockets of 
water but has many small island of uplands and therefore provides limited flood storage. 

Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen Retention – The presence of this function reduces or prevents 
degradation of water quality because the wetland acts as a trap for sediments, toxicants or 
pathogens. 

Wetland B is sloping and therefore does not provide sediment trapping as water moves through 
the system.  Wetland C has many small depressions that hold water and provides some 
sediment trapping.  

Nutrient Removal/Retention Transformation – This function relates to the effectiveness of the 
wetland to prevent adverse effects of excess nutrients entering surface waters or aquifers. 

Wetland B is limited in this function due to its slope.  Wetland C provides minor nutrient 
attenuation function as it holds some water during spring and rain events.  

Production Export – This function relates to the effectiveness of the wetland to produce food or 
usable products for human or other living organisms. 

This function is provided to a small degree by the fruit bearing shrubs within both wetlands. 

Sediment/Shoreline Stabilization – This function relates to the effectiveness of a wetland to 
stabilize stream banks and shorelines against erosion. 

This function is not present in either wetland as they are not associated with streams. 

Wildlife Habitat – This function considers the effectiveness of the wetland to provide habitat for 
various types and populations of animals typically associated with the wetland and the wetland 
edge (includes resident and migratory species). 

Both wetlands provide minor wildlife habitat function, but this is limited due to lack of aquatic 
habitat, vernal pools and their relatively small size.  Habitat for forest dwelling species is 
present.  



 
 

Proposed Subdivision 100 Linden Street, Exeter, NH                                         Page 2 
 
WEI worked with Millennium Engineering to prepared wetland buffer impact and mitigation 
detail sheets attached.  The goal is to restore buffers closest to the wetland to protect wetland 
functions.  
 
Wetland B has 3,280 SF of 40-foot buffer zone impacts for a stormwater detention basin.  
The outside slope of the basin closest to the wetland will have 1,950 SF of buffer plantings. 
 
Wetland B - Temporary Buffer Impacts to be Restored 1,950 SF 
Species                                                              Number                   Size 
Pinus strobus   White Pine                                   7                         3-4'  
Clethera Alnifolia  Sweet Pepperbush               8                         2-4’  
Vaccinnium corymbosum   Blueberry                8                         2-4'   
Viburnum dentatum   Arrow wood                    7                         2-4'  
 
Wetland C has 1,490 SF of permanent impact to the outer portion of the 40-foot buffer zone.  
2,260 SF of the inner 40-foot buffer zone to Wetland C will be restored. 
An addition 2,000 SF of 40-50-foot buffer to Wetland C will also be planted. 
 
Wetland C - Temporary Buffer Impacts to be Restored 2,260 
Species                                                              Number                   Size 
Pinus strobus   White Pine                                  10                        3-4'  
Clethera Alnifolia Sweet Pepperbush                8                         2-4’  
Vaccinnium corymbosum   Blueberry                 8                         2-4'   
Viburnum dentatum   Arrow wood                   10                         2-4'  
 
Wetland C – Additional Wetland Buffer Plantings 2,000 
Pinus strobus   White Pine                                    6                         3-4'  
Clethera Alnifolia  Sweet Pepperbush                6                         2-4’  
Vaccinnium corymbosum   Blueberry                 6                         2-4'   
Viburnum dentatum   Arrow wood                     6                         2-4'  
 
The limited functions of the two wetlands have minor impact to a small portion of their overall 
40-foot buffers.  These impacts will be mitigated by buffer restoration plantings.   
This completes our report to support the Condition Use Permit Application for impacts within 
the 40-foot setback to wetlands.  
 
Please call our office if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Mark C. West  
NH Certified Wetland Scientist # 10 
 
Cc:  Sandy Winter  



























13 PUBLIC EVENTS
535 PEOPLE

24.4K FB REACH 
#185 Event Attendees and #350 Students
We had a very active event season this year! 

 Highlights include: Full Moon Snowshoe at Irvine,
Cottontail Survey Workshop, 5th Grade Spring

Tree Program, #TrashTag Clean-Up with SST
Students, Invasive Pull with PEA Students, Bats

and Bat House Workshop, CMS 8th Grade Water
Quality Project, Invasive Plant Pull at Henderson

Swasey, McDonnell Bird Walk, Window Repair
Workshop, Exploring Exeter: Little River, Water

Trail Tour and Raynes Farm Winter Solstice

2019
CONSERVATION 
BY THE NUMBERS

 95.5 ACRES OF
HABITAT 

MANAGEMENT
COMPLETED

65.5 acres were managed with late season
mowing.  This avoids the breeding season for
grassland birds and maintains a fall seed and

nectar source. 
 30 acres of Henderson Swasey Town Forest

were managed through hand pulling of
Invasive Plants with support of PEA students

and community volunteers

13.5 MI. OF
RECREATIONAL
TRAILS
MAINTAINED
With support from our Trail Committee
volunteers, Commission members, the Natural
Resource Planner, and interns we updated our
trail inventory, producing new trail maps,
installed directional signage and kiosks, and
refreshed trail blazes. 

63 PROPERTIES,
2,337 ACRES
MONITORED
Monitoring conservation lands is a legal
responsibility of the Commission.  This ensures
lands remain in compliance with their
conservation deeds and affords us an
opportunity to connect with the private land
owners supporting our conservation easements.  
Annually our Conservation Land Steward
Internship program helps us achieve this goal.



2019 Accomplishment Review Session 

Goal 1:  Deeper partnership with Parks and Rec, YMCA and other community groups. (Relates to Master 
Plan Support, 3, 7, 8)  

• Exploring Exeter trail program w/ Parks and Rec  
o 2/16 Full Moon snowshoe @ Irvine 
o 5/18 Bird Walk @ McDonnell 
o 7/20 Trail Walk @ Little River 
o 9/21 Squamscott Kayak tour (Cancelled-low turnout) 

 
Goal 2:  Have focused/goal oriented outreach events.  For example, prioritize Raynes farm in prep for 
CIP and LCHIP application, prioritize events that also help to meet Town’s MS4 and AOC requirements.  
(Relates to Master Plan Support, 7) 

• Conservation Center at Raynes Farm Events 
o 4/22 Woodcock Walk 
o 5/4 NH Bats & Bat Box workshop (moved to TO) 
o 6/29 Window Workshop  
o 10/25, 26 Story Walk and Sky Watch (Cancelled due to weather) 
o 12/21 Solstice Celebration 
o Collaborated w/ DPW to improve parking issues 

• Rain Barrel Sale (5/11( 
• SST Collaborative Clean Up Morrissette property  
• VRAP w/ supplemental volunteer outreach 
• EveryDrop Pet Waste @ Trailheads 

 
Goal 3:  Develop and maintain a list of conservation related activities going on by other groups in town 
so the Commission members are informed and can be a point of reference for the public. (Relates to MP 
Support, 8) 

•  
 

Goal 4:  Incorporate higher quality public events that utilize experts and require a donation by 
participants to supplement the conservation fund (Relates to MP Support, 8) 

• Combine with Goal 2? 
 

Goal 5:  Improve Commission education on their role, the regulations, communication with the Planning 
Board, and development of effective recommended conditions.  (Relates to MP Communicate, 2?) 

• Project Review guidance document 
 
Goal 6:  Maintain trails on conservation lands open to the public.  (Relates to MP Steward, 11 and could 
relate to MP Steward 12) 

• Updated trail inventory & updated trail brochures, kiosks, internal signs 
• Directional signage in Oaklands and Henderson Swasey 
• Refreshed blazes at Henderson Swasey 
• Installed mini-kiosk @ Garrison Ln (Little River @ Pete’s path) 
• Eagle Project:  Morrissette bridge and trial work 

o Deferred: sign @ skate park, sign @ Court St end of McDonnell 
• H-S Granite Sign Replacement 



 
Goal 7:  Work to ensure a resilient community in both the short and long term. (Relates to MP Prepare, 
3, 4, 5 and Steward, 1)  

• Explored Community garden option but denied 
• Mitigation project development 
• Invasive Plant management at Henderson Swasey w/ SST and volunteers 
• Golf Course Living Shoreline:  Requested engineering support w/ US Naval Academy  
• Climate Ed/Outreach w/ NHSeaGrant and Coop Ext. 

 
OTHER: 

• Winter Cottontail Survey training w/ UNH Coop Ext (Kristen) 
• Property Monitoring – Interns  
• Quarterly Raynes Farm Stewardship Committee meeting (Sally) 
• CMS 8th Grade Wetland Buffer Science Program 
• CIP for Conservation Fund 
• Established a Friends of Raynes Farm Group 

 
 
 



SUPPORT Action Town Lead Town Support Timeframe

8
Sponsor and support events that bring residents and businesses together and celebrate the 
local community.

Town Manager All Departments Ongoing

9

Continue to support quality public education opportunities through the endorsement of 
the SAU16 Joint Board Strategic Plan. Identify specific strategies in the Strategic Plan where 
other municipal departments can provide support and incorporate these in department 
work plans.

Town Manager All Departments Ongoing

10
Continue to provide “wrap around” support for critical public meetings like on‐ site child 
care, refreshments, recordings, and/or printed summaries.

Town Manager All Departments Ongoing

3
Identify new facilities or programming, using the findings of the UNH Needs Assessment 
and Planning Report (2014‐2015) as a starting point. Estimate costs and feasibility of 
providing these new facilities/activities.

Conservation 
Commission, 
Selectboard

Mid Term
Parks & Rec , 
Town Manager, 
NRP

7

Develop a public awareness campaign to educate residents and businesses about water 
quality and state and federal mandates that require the Town to improve and monitor it. 
Include such topics as: what the mandates require the Town to do (new programs, 
infrastructure projects, etc.), the impact of lower water quality on the quality of life in 
Exeter, and how residents and businesses can contribute to improving water quality.

Conservation 
Commission, River 
Advisory Committee

Short TermDPW, NRP



PREPARE Action Town Lead Town Support Timeframe

For areas identified most vulnerable to sea level rise, storm surge, and other natural
hazards, evaluate town land use policies for these areas and consider alternatives to
minimize risk in each area. These might include:
•       Acquiring property to minimize the impact of sea level rise, chronic flooding, marsh
migration, etc. to public and private property.
•        Limit redevelopment after flood or storm damage.
•        Decisions where to extend (or not extend) infrastructure (roads, water,

sewer, etc.)
Town Planner, 
Resource 
Planner

STEWARD Action Town Lead Town Support Timeframe
Town Planner, 
Natural

Conservation

Resource 
Planner

Commission

1b
Review criteria for acquiring land for conservation and consider adding criteria related to 
sea level rise, marsh migration, chronic flooding, storm surge, and other impacts of climate 
change and natural hazards.

Natural 
Resource 
Planner

Conservation 
Commission, River 
Advisory 
Committee, 
Selectboard

Mid Term

2

Based on revised criteria and assessment of natural resources already under regulatory 
protection, prioritize parcels of interest for conservation purposes. Consider available and 
future funding sources and other tools available to protect land. Develop a 10‐year 
schedule for implementation.

Natural 
Resource 
Planner

Conservation 
Commission, 
Selectboard

Mid Term

2c
Based on findings of the land use policies evaluation, implement new land use policies and 
regulations to reduce risks from sea level rise, storm surge, and other natural hazards.

Selectboard, 
Planning Board, 
Conservation 

Mid Term

2a

Conservation 
Commission, 
Planning Board, 
River Advisory 
Committee

Short Term

2b

Conservation 
Commission, 
Planning Board, 
River Advisory 
Committee

Mid Term

Based on most recent data available, inventory properties most vulnerable to sea level rise, 
storm surge, and other natural hazards. Where possible,estimate the time horizon for 
impacts. Develop outreach methods to education private property owners about the risks 
and ways they can minimize impacts to their properties.

Town Planner, 
NRP

Town Planner, 
NRP

1a
Identify properties that are less likely be developed based on regulatory requirements and 
determine whether this affects their prioritization level for acquisition.

Short Term



STEWARD Action Town Lead Town Support Timeframe

Conservation

Commission

GROW Action Town Lead Town Support Timeframe

5a
Evaluate the Town’s property tax exemption programs (elderly, alternative energy, RSA
79E, etc.) to determine their costs and project future impacts based on demographic
changes and other trends.

Town Manager, 
Tax Assessor, 
Economic 
Development 
Director

Selectboard Mid Term

11
Continue to identify improvements to public spaces and the public realm in the Downtown 
to enhance its character. This may include public art, pedestrian amenities, or signage. 
Maintain consistency with bike and pedestrian linkages under CONNECT.

Town Planner Ongoing

7
Establish a “Friends” group of volunteers for individual town conservation properties to 
support and help with maintenance, including trail infrastructure, debris and litter, 
installations, etc.

Natural 
Resource 
Planner

Short Term

8
Prioritize town conservation properties in need of invasive species management. Estimate 
costs and develop a 10‐year schedule for management strategies.

Natural 
Resource 
Planner

Mid Term

6c
Natural 
Resource 
Planner

Short TermConservation

Review and update the Trail Maintenance Plan (2009).
• Identify recommendations that have not been completed.
• Determine which recommendations are still relevant and which are not. Identify new 
recommendations as needed.
• Develop a 10‐year schedule for maintenance, improvements, or future

Conservation 
Commission

9
Natural 
Resource 
Planner

Short Term

Review and revise existing forest management plans (Henderson‐Swasey (2011) and 
Oaklands (1993)) as needed to ensure they remain relevant to conservation land 
management goals.
• Identify recommendations that have not been completed.
• Determine which recommendations are still relevant and which are not.
• Identify new recommendations as needed.

Conservation 
Commission



CONNECT Action Town Lead Town Support Timeframe

Town Planner, 

Manager

COMMUNICATE Action Town Lead Town Support Timeframe

4
Continue to organize community forums to discuss issues important to Exeter. Ensure that 
events, especially large ones, provide options for food and child care.

TBD
Selectboard, All 
Boards, Town 
Departments

Short to Mid Term

5
Evaluate the ways in which the Town communicates with the public and ensure that 
strategies maximize citizen engagement across multiple platforms. Determine the 
strategies that could be strengthened and move forward with ways for improvement.

TBD Short to Mid Term

All Departments 

RFPs

4
Working with private and public land owners, evaluate the feasibility of a pedestrian 
walkway/access along the Squamscott River from Swasey Parkway to the Library.

Selectboard, River 
Adivsory Committee

Short Term

2a
Town Planner, 
Dept of Public 
Works

Planning Board Short Term

Prepare a town‐wide Bike and Pedestrian Master Plan that looks at both walking and biking 
as modes of transportation beyond recreation. Identify improvements to existing amenities 
and areas where new amenities could be feasibly installed to promote walking and biking. 
Use the concurrent parking study (or parking management plan if already developed) for 
Downtown to inform the plan.
Destinations/Routes to consider:
• All public schools
• Epping Road to Downtown
• Lincoln Street/Train Station to Downtown

6
Develop language to be included in municipal RFPs that requires the inclusion of diverse 
and effective public engagement processes as part of municipal planning, design, and 
construction processes.

Town Manager Short Term



kj
kj

kj

kj

Map Created 1-3-20, KMurphy

-

Legend

Glossy Buckthorn

Japanese Barberry

Morrows Honeysuckle

Multiflora Rose

Species
Autumn Olive

Black Swallow-wort

Burning Bush

Common Buckthorn

Garlic Mustard

kj
Burning Bush, Gl.Buckthorn, 
Barberry

Burning Bush, Gl. Buckthorn Oriental Bittersweet

Purple Loosestrife

Phragmites

Privet

Heavy Infestation

0 0.250.125
Miles

SkidRoads

Landings



Full Moon Snowshoe Hike 
Exeter Country Club/Irvine Conservation Land 

 
 

Snow  Moon – Sabra Field, Portrait Diva 

Saturday February 8th 6:30 PM 
 Meet at the Exeter Country Club parking lot (58 Jady Hill Ave) for 

a guided walk followed by hot cocoa.   
 

*This event will occur with or without snow—so dress for the weather and look for updates on our facebook page. 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission invites you to 

* 



1 

Exeter Conservation Commission  
December 10, 2019 

Town Offices Nowak Room 
Draft Minutes  

 
Call To Order 

1. Introduction of Members Present 
 
Present at tonight’s meeting were Bill Campbell, Carlos Guindon, Ginny Raub, Andrew Koff, 
Sally Ward, Todd Piskovitz, Dave Short, Trevor Mattera, Julie Gilman, and Kristen Murphy.  
 
Lindsey White, Andy Weeks, and Alyson Eberhardt were not present.  
 
Mr. Piskovitz called the meeting to order at 7 PM. 
 

2. Public Comment 
 
Action items 
 

1. Event Request for the Conservation Center at Raynes Barn (Ben Anderson) 
 Ben Anderson described the proposed event, which would be a concert at the barn with 
seating outside. Ms. Ward asked about parking, and Mr. Anderson said he is expecting about 
200 people but believes there would be enough parking; there are over 100 spaces available at 
the Word Barn. Mr. Piskovitz asked if the police would be involved, and Mr. Anderson said it 
depends on how the event shapes up. Mr. Piskovitz asked Mr. Campbell asked when the event 
would be, and Mr. Anderson said probably in the beginning of August, after the first hay cut.  
MOTION: Mr. Koff moved that the Commission has reviewed Mr. Anderson’s application and 
recommend the event be approved, with the note that Mr. Anderson will notify the Commission 
on the specifics and a date as they become known. Ms. Ward seconded. All were in favor.  
 

2. Continued consideration of conservation easement on +/- 61 acres of land within Tax 
Map and Lots 98-37 and 80-18 surrounding the Ridge and the Boulders at RiverWoods 
development in accordance with the condition of approval issued by the Planning Board 
on June 5, 2008. (Sharon Somers) 

 Ms. Murphy said that this easement was issued conditional approval in 2008, and 
they’ve been working to get it implemented. In September, a Conservation Commission 
subcommittee was formed to review the agreement, and she, Mr. Guindon, and Mr. Campbell 
met and made some changes. They were presented to RiverWoods, who were supportive. 
She’s looking for the Commission to accept the draft for presentation to the Select Board. Mr. 
Piskovitz asked if it had been reviewed by legal counsel, and Ms. Murphy said that was the next 
step after their approval.  
 Sharon Somers, legal counsel for RiverWoods, thanked the Conservation Commission 
for their consideration.  



2 

MOTION: Mr. Campbell moved that they have reviewed this proposal and recommend 
acceptance of the conservation easement for Tax Map and Lots 98-37 and 80-18, to go before 
the Select Board. Ms. Ward seconded. All were in favor.  
 

3. Committee Reports 
a. Property Management 

i. Relinquishment of Claim to Deed from Book 2365 Page 489 by Robert 
Webb 

Ms. Murphy said this was a tax deeded parcel that did not have a description associated. 
The owner, Robert Webb, approached Ms. Murphy about logging it. She believed that it was a 
conservation easement, but he had been paying taxes on it. The town reviewed the case and 
determined that the property was an easement. The case went before the Select Board, who 
agreed to pay him his back taxes, and he relinquished his claim.  

 
ii. Conservation Fund Budget Recommendations Committee outcome and 

Conservation Plan Concept 
Ms. Murphy discussed the presentation of the $100,000 Conservation Fund allocation 

request to the BRC. She said that several members of the BRC suggested that it was the same 
burden to the taxpayers to get a bond, and they would have more money up front to work with. 
The BRC were also struggling with a 4% increase in the budget and were trying to find cost 
savings. Their vote was to reduce the allocation to $50,000, and that’s how it will go before the 
Select Board. Ms. Murphy said they have a good list of properties for consideration, and she 
suggested that before March a subcommittee should come up with a top three. They should 
also consider which properties may come in as partial donations. They could start the 
landowner outreach process.  

Mr. Mattera said that if a developer is looking to develop land, they are supposed to look 
to a town’s mitigation list before they go to ARM, but currently developers are skipping this step. 
Ms. Murphy said it would go a long way to have appraisals ready and have these properties 
queued up.  

Mr. Short asked where the Land Use Change Tax goes, and Mr. Piskovitz said to the 
General Fund. Mr. Short said they could look at changing that. That source of funding, 
combined with a bond, could really move things along. Ms. Murphy said that Don Clement told 
her it was discussed and not supported in the past. The NHACC Handbook does have the 
language written out to approach the Select Board with if they were interested in pursuing it. It 
doesn’t have to be all or nothing, they could take a portion of the Land Use Change Tax.  

Ms. Gilman corrected the budget figure, saying that it’s 3.1% increase, not 4%.  
 

b. Trails 
Mr. Short said that he and Mr. Campbell still have to finish the tunnel signs. They have 

all the materials and may be able to get to it soon. Mr. Campbell said there are a few that need 
to be dug in that will have to wait for a thaw. Ms. Murphy said they still have the Oaklands to do 
as well. Mr. Campbell asked when Eversource is leaving Raynes, and Ms. Murphy said the end 
of this week.  

c. Outreach Events 



3 

i. Upcoming: 12/21 4-6 PM Winter Solstice Celebration @ Raynes Farm 
Ms. Ward said that Ms. Murphy had the idea of an event with lanterns, which would be 

limited to 50 people as there would be a component inside the barn. This would celebrate the 
solstice and also highlight Raynes Farm. They are looking for someone to help with the bonfire. 
The DPW will either plow the parking lot or Parks and Rec will have a shuttle. Ms. Murphy said 
they had 50 reservations and more people interested in coming. Ms. Ward said her hope is that 
this will be the first annual solstice event. 

Ms. Murphy said that the full moon snowshoe February 8th coincides with Deliberative 
Session, and she asked if members were okay with the overlap, but they had no concerns. 

Ms. Murphy said they had the idea of “Open Barn” events at Raynes where people could 
play in the fields and come inside for some cocoa. It would be a good way to increase support 
for the farm. They could have monthly “Pop Up” events to work with snow days. Ms. Ward said 
she’d be more comfortable with fixed events so they could ensure volunteers were available. 
Ms. Raub said she would rather be flexible to work with the snowfall, and she could do an event 
in January. Mr. Koff said he’d be interested in the pop-up events so that they can avoid 
cancelling another event. Ms. Murphy said she’ll announce a pop-up and look for registrants.  

Ms. Murphy said Ben Anderson said he could put lights up at Raynes to draw attention 
in the winter, and the Commission liked that idea. Mr. Campbell thought putting lights on the 
barn or using garden lights along the path would also be nice.  

Mr. Piskovitz asked Ms. Ward if there were updates on the Tree City USA process. Ms. 
Ward said all the requirements have now been met and the application has been submitted. 
They should hear back on the status in March.  

 
4. Approval of Minutes: November 12, 2019 

MOTION: Mr. Campbell moved to approve the minutes of November 12, 2019 as submitted. Ms. 
Ward seconded. All were in favor.  
 

5. Correspondence 
 Mr. Koff said they got a request from a town consultant for permission to explore water 
resources on some of the conservation properties. The consultant would use equipment that 
would not disturb the ground. Ms. Murphy said this was related to the Drinkwater Road 
properties, and she had shared information with the consultant on the long-term limitations on 
those properties. 
 

6. Other Business 
 Mr. Piskovitz said at the October 25th Planning Board meeting, they passed 4-3 a 
motion to allow the Town Planner or his designee to approve fertilizer waiver requests. Their 
discussion at the meeting was that they have faith in Dave Sharples and Ms. Murphy to make 
these determinations, but Mr. Piskovitz was concerned that they approved a position, rather 
than a specific person, to make the decision. Also, if it’s done by one person in an office, that 
takes public comment out of the process. Ms. Raub said that she had been on the fertilizer 
committee and spent a lot of time calculating percentages, and Mr. Sharples and Ms. Murphy 
have the background and know-how to approve or deny it, more so than the Planning Board. 
Ms. Ward said she wanted the public to be able to weigh in. 



4 

Ms. Murphy said that in her opinion, the waiver provision is limited. Even with a waiver, 
fertilizer would still be prohibited within 100 feet of a shoreland district. The applicant would also 
still need to follow the state best management practices. Their proposal would need to show 
they’re using a minimum of 50% slow release nitrogen and that it’s phosphate free, unless soil 
testing showed it was depleted of phosphorous. There’s very little decision making being made, 
just documenting that their management plan conforms to the guidelines. Mr. Campbell asked if 
this was for commercial purposes, and Ms. Murphy said this was only for heavily used turf. This 
came up because an organic lawncare company and PEA were unable to maintain their turf. 
This was a compromise between the science and being too strict. If there were a question about 
compliance, they would bring it back to the Planning Board.  
 

7. Next Meeting 
a. Date Scheduled 1/14/20, Submission Deadline 1/3/20 

 
Adjournment 
 
MOTION: Mr. Campbell moved to adjourn. Ms. Raub seconded. All were in favor and the 
meeting was adjourned at 8:10 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Joanna Bartell 
Recording Secretary 


	Date:  January 10, 2019
	2020 Full Moon Snowshoe Irvine.pdf
	Full Moon Snowshoe Hike�Exeter Country Club/Irvine Conservation Land��


